

Journal of the House

NINTH DAY

HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
TOPEKA, K.S, Friday, January 24, 2025, 11:00 a.m.

The House met session pro forma, pursuant to adjournment with Speaker Hawkins in the chair.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were introduced and read by title:

HB 2091, AN ACT concerning elections; relating to voter registration; requiring that discharged inmates be offered the opportunity to register to vote; requiring the secretary of state to develop a voter registration program that offers voter registration services through certain state agencies and at each accredited high school; amending K.S.A. 22-3722 and 25-2416 and repealing the existing sections, by Representative Clayton.

HB 2092, AN ACT concerning labor and employment; relating to professional employer organizations; providing that registrations of such organizations with the secretary of state shall expire on October 15 following issuance; providing an exception therefrom for registrations issued on or after January 1, 2025, that shall expire on October 15, 2026; making the time for filing annual audits by such organizations coincide with the time of renewing of registrations; limiting the means of providing surety by a professional employer organization with insufficient working capital to the provision of a bond and eliminating the market value measure of the sufficiency of such bond; amending K.S.A. 2024 Supp. 44-1704 and 44-1706 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Commerce, Labor and Economic Development.

HB 2093, AN ACT concerning childhood abuse or neglect; authorizing victims of childhood abuse or neglect to access records related to substantiated reports or investigations of abuse or neglect; extending the time to file civil actions for recovery of damages caused by childhood sexual abuse; amending K.S.A. 2024 Supp. 38-2212 and 60-523 and repealing the existing sections, by Committee on Child Welfare and Foster Care.

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION No. **HCR 5007**—

By Representative Clayton

A PROPOSITION to amend section 1 of article 5 of the constitution of the state of Kansas; lowering the minimum age for qualified electors to vote in elections in this state from 18 to 16 years.

Be it resolved by the Legislature of the State of Kansas, two-thirds of the members elected (or appointed) and qualified to the House of Representatives and two-thirds of the members elected (or appointed) and qualified to the Senate concurring therein:

Section 1. The following proposition to amend the constitution of the state of Kansas shall be submitted to the qualified electors of the state for their approval or rejection: Section 1 of article 5 of the constitution of the state of Kansas is hereby amended to read as follows:

"§ 1. Qualifications of electors. Every citizen of the United States who has attained the age of ~~eighteen~~ 16 years and who resides in the voting area in which ~~he or she~~ *such person* seeks to vote shall be deemed a qualified elector. Laws of this state relating to voting for presidential electors and candidates for the office of president and vice-president of the United States shall comply with the laws of the United States relating thereto. A citizen of the United States, who is otherwise qualified to vote in Kansas for presidential electors and candidates for the offices of president and vice-president of the United States may vote for such officers either in person or by absentee ballot notwithstanding the fact that such person may have become a nonresident of this state if ~~his or her~~ *such person's* removal from this state occurs during a period in accordance with federal law next preceding such election. A person who is otherwise a qualified elector may vote in the voting area of ~~his or her~~ *such person's* former residence either in person or by absentee ballot notwithstanding the fact that such person may have become a nonresident of such voting area during a period prescribed by law next preceding the election at which ~~he or she~~ *such person* seeks to vote, if ~~his~~ *such person's* new residence is in another voting area in the state of Kansas."

Sec. 2. The following statement shall be printed on the ballot with the amendment as a whole:

"Explanatory statement. This amendment would lower the minimum age to be qualified to vote in elections in this state from 18 to 16 years.

"A vote for this proposition would lower the minimum age to be qualified to vote in elections in this state from 18 to 16 years.

"A vote against this proposition would make no change to the minimum age to be qualified to vote in elections in this state, which is 18 years."

Sec. 3. This resolution, if approved by two-thirds of the members elected (or appointed) and qualified to the House of Representatives and two-thirds of the members elected (or appointed) and qualified to the Senate, shall be entered on the journals, together with the yeas and nays. The secretary of state shall cause this resolution to be published as provided by law and shall cause the proposed amendment to be submitted to the electors of the state at the general election in November in the year 2026, unless a special election is called at a sooner date by concurrent resolution of the legislature, in which case the proposed amendment shall be submitted to the electors of the state at the special election.

REFERENCE OF BILLS AND CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

The following bills and concurrent resolutions were referred to committees as indicated:

Appropriations: **HB 2082.**

Child Welfare and Foster Care: **HB 2075, HB 2076.**

Commerce, Labor and Economic Development: **HB 2090.**

Education: **HCR 5005.**

Federal and State Affairs: **HB 2065, HB 2066, HCR 5006.**

Financial Institutions and Pensions: **HB 2086, HB 2089.**

Health and Human Services: **HB 2068, HB 2069, HB 2070, HB 2071, HB 2072.**

Insurance: **HB 2087.**

Local Government: **HB 2088.**

Taxation: **HB 2067, HB 2073, HB 2074, HB 2077, HB 2078, HB 2079, HB 2080, HB 2081, HB 2083, HB 2084.**

Water: **HB 2085.**

REPORT ON ENGROSSED BILLS

HR 6004 reported correctly engrossed January 24, 2025.

On motion of Rep. Croft the House adjourned pro forma until 11:00 a.m. on Monday, January 27, 2025.

JENNY HAUGH, JULIA WERNER, *Journal Clerks.*

SUSAN W. KANNARR, *Chief Clerk.*

